SIØ J. WHITE IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA UN 15 1992 SUPREME COURT. ERP Chief Deputy Clerk 976 CASE NO.

ERVIN E. WILLIAMS, Petitioner,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

DANIEL J. SCHAFER ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER FLORIDA BAR NO. 0377228 112 Orange Ave., Suite A Daytona Beach, FL 32114 (904) 252-3367

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

#

#### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The following statement of case and facts, excepting the final paragraph, is taken from the State's Initial Brief filed in the District Court of Appeal on January 24, 1992.

Appellee, Ervin Eugene Williams, was arrested on March 22, 1991. (R 3,57) Appellee was charged with having committed a burglary of a dwelling, petit theft, and dealing in stolen property between March 1, 1991 and March 5, 1991, and an information was filed on April 11, 1991. (R 28-30) Appellee was arraigned on April 16, 1991 in Case Number CR 91-3192 before the Honorable Richard Conrad of the Ninth Judicial Circuit for Orange County. (R 31) Appellee pled not guilty and trial was set for August 19, 1991. (R 31) A Public Defender was appointed to represent Appellee. (R 31) The State Attorney's Office filed a Notice of Intention to Seek Enhanced Punishment on June 5, 1991.

(R 36)

On September 3, 1991, the State appeared before the Honorable Judge Sprinkel and asked for a one-day continuance, which at that time was well within the time period for speedy trial. (R 6-7) The State had subpoenaed all of its witnesses but was unable to contact one of the key witnesses over the Labor Day weekend to make sure that he showed up for the trial. The State asked for the one-day continuance so they could send an investigator to the witness' workplace. Judge Sprinkel denied the request. (R 6) The State nolle prossed the case, since it could not contact its key witness. (R 6) The State went on the record as stating it nolle prossed the case and then refiled it because it had no other choice. (R 6-7)

The State filed a Nolle Proseque on September 3, 1991. (R 37) On September 12, 1991, Appellee's speedy trial period expired. (R 3) Appellee did not make a demand for speedy trial since the case had been nolle prossed on September 3, 1991. (R 3) On September 16, 1991, the State refiled the information charging Appellee with Burglary of a Dwelling, Petit Theft, and Dealing In Stolen Property. (R 38-40) A capias was issued for Appellee on September 16, 1991, (R 47,51), and Appellee was again arrested on September 26, 1991. Appellee was again arraigned on October 2, 1991 in Case Number CR 91-9863, in front of the Honorable Judge Formet. (R 52) Appellee pled not guilty and a Public Defender was appointed. (R 52) Appellee filed a motion to discharge on October 8, 1991. (R 54-55) Trial was set for

October 21, 1991, within the fifteen-day "window" remedy provided by Rule 3.191(i)(3), Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure. (R 60-61) A motion for discharge hearing was held on October 21, 1991 before the Honorable Judge Hauser at which time the trial court granted the motion for discharge. (R 58) An amended order of dismissal was filed on November 7, 1991 by Judge Hauser, nunc pro tunc October 21, 1991. (R 60-61) Judge Hauser held that the 15day window does not apply where the State nolle prossed the case and then refiled it after speedy trial period has run. (R 20,60-61)

On appeal the Fifth District Court of Appeal reversed. <u>State v. Williams</u>, 17 FLW D1110 (Fla. 5th DCA May 1, 1992). The court noted the trial judge's reliance on <u>State v. Agee</u>, 588 So.2d 600 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991), and quoted the language from <u>Agee</u> upon which Mr. Williams was relying. However, the court interpreted <u>Zabrani v. Cowart</u>, 502 So.2d 1257 (Fla. 3d DCA 1986) as consistent with the approach advocated by the State. The court rejected <u>Agee</u> and chose to follow <u>Zabrani</u>. Mr. Williams filed a timely notice to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court, served on June 1, 1992. This brief follows.

# SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The decision of the Fifth District Court in this case is clearly in conflict with <u>State v. Agee</u>, 588 So.2d 600 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991). The District Court quoted extensively from <u>Agee</u> but rejected its holding. Acceptance of jurisdiction is appropriate, especially in view of the fact that <u>Agee</u> is already pending review.

#### **ARGUMENT**

THE DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT IN THE INSTANT CASE IS IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH THE DECISION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN <u>STATE</u> <u>V. AGEE</u>, 588 SO.2D 600 (FLA. 1ST DCA 1991).

The District Court's decision in this case is clearly in express and direct conflict with <u>State v. Agee</u>, 588 So.2d 600 (Fla. 1st DCA 1991). The District Court's opinion recognizes <u>Agee</u> as contrary authority. In its Initial Brief to the District Court of Appeal the State made no attempt to distinguish <u>Agee</u>, but argued only that the decision was not correct. Clearly the State would have lost its appeal had the Fifth District Court of Appeal decided to follow <u>Agee</u>.

This Court should accept discretionary jurisdiction in this case to maintain uniformity of decisions throughout the State in this important area of the law. Fairness and expediency would dictate acceptance of jurisdiction where the Court has already agreed to hear <u>State v. Agee</u>, Florida Supreme Court Case Number 78,950 (oral argument set for October 6, 1992).

#### CONCLUSION

BASED UPON the foregoing arguments and the authorities cited herein, Petitioner respectfully requests that this Court accept discretionary jurisdiction in this cause.