IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED SID J. WHITE

JUL 2 1992

CLERK, SUPPEME COURT.

By
Chief Deputy Clerk

ERVIN EUGENE WILLIAMS,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 79,976

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FIFTH DISTRICT

RESPONDENT'S JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

NANCY RYAN
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL
Fla. Bar #765910
210 N. Palmetto Ave.
Suite 447
Daytona Beach, FL 32114
(904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The petitioner has not shown direct and express conflict between the Fifth District Court's decision in this case and the First District Court's decision in <u>State v. Agee</u>, 588 So.2d 600 (Fla. 1st DCA), <u>jurisdiction accepted</u>, no. 78,950 (Fla. 1991). The cases are distinguishable, and there is accordingly no direct conflict although the Fifth District Court declined to apply the per se rule established by the court in Agee.

ARGUMENT

THE PETITIONER HAS NOT SHOWN DIRECT AND EXPRESS CONFLICT BETWEEN DECISIONS.

The petitioner, Ervin Williams, seeks review of the decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in this case, alleging that it is in direct and express conflict with the decision of the First District Court of Appeal in State v. Agee, 588 So.2d 600 (Fla. 1st DCA), jurisdiction accepted, no. 78,950 (Fla. 1991). The decisions are not in direct conflict, although the Fifth District Court in this case declined to apply the per se rule established by the First District Court in Agee. The state further submits that the per se rule announced in Agee is inconsistent with this court's decisions in Zabrani v. Cowart, 506 So.2d 1035 (Fla. 1987) and Bloom v. McKnight, 502 So.2d 422 (Fla. 1987), and that the Fifth District Court's decision in this case correctly applies the rule of McKnight and Zabrani. This court accordingly need not exercise its discretionary review in this case.

The First District Court held in Agee that if the state in a felony case files a nolle prosequi, refiles charges, and fails to bring the defendant to trial within 175 days, the defendant is entitled to automatic release without filing the motion for discharge contemplated in Rule 3.191(i). The court reasoned that 3.191(i), which provides for a 15-day "window of recapture" after filing of a motion for discharge, is altogether inapplicable, because of Rule 3.191(h), to cases in which the state files a nolle prosequi. 3.191(h) provides that "[t]he intent and effect

of this Rule shall not be avoided by the State by entering a nolle prosequi." The Fifth District Court in this case declined to follow Agee's per se rule, holding in effect that a two-week delay occasioned by a nolle prosequi filed in good faith and not for the purpose of delay does not amount to avoidance of the intent and effect of Rule 3.191.

The decision in this case is not in direct conflict with the decision in Agee, as the cases are distinguishable. Conflict must be both express and direct. Department of Revenue v. Johnson, 442 So.2d 950, 951-2 (Fla. 1983). This court has strictly construed the constitution's jurisdictional requirement that conflict between decisions be express and direct. See Department of Health and Rehabilitative Services v. National Adoption Counseling Service, Inc., 498 So.2d 888 (Fla. 1986); Reaves v. State, 485 So.2d 829 (Fla. 1986); Jenkins v. State, 385 So.2d1356, 1359 (Fla. 1980).

Moreover, as the Fifth District Court noted in its opinion in this case, this court held in <u>Zabrani v. Cowart</u>, <u>supra</u>, and <u>Bloom v. McKnight</u>, <u>supra</u>, that filing a motion for discharge is the "operative event" that triggers a right to release under Rule 3.191, Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure. Agee is inconsistent

In this case, had the state not filed a nolle prosequi, Mr. Williams could have filed a motion for discharge on September 13, 1991. That motion would have required the state to bring petitioner to trial by Monday, September 30. The state filed its nolle prosequi, refiled charges, and rearrested Mr. Williams on September 26. He could then have filed a motion for discharge at his first appearance on September 27 or 28, requiring the state to bring him to trial by Monday, October 14. Agee involved a similar sequence of events with the significant difference that a two-year delay, rather than a two-week delay, was occasioned by the state's nolle prosequi. 588 So.2d at 602.

with Zabrani and McKnight, and should be reversed. The decision in this case is consistent with this court's decisions and with a sensible construction of Rule 3.191. This court accordingly need not grant discretionary review in this case. See generally Woodward v. State, 379 So.2d 664 (Fla. 1980) (declining to accept jurisdiction; no substantial question raised where this court had already "at least implicitly" ruled on issue raised by petitioner).

CONCLUSION

The Respondent requests this court to decline to exercise its discretionary power to review this matter.